
 
  

 
 
 

P 
 
 
 

TOWN OF NEWTOWN LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL MEETING 
FEBRUARY 21, 2018 

NEWTOWN MUNICIPAL CENTER, NEWTOWN, CT 
 

PRESENT: Chris Eide, Chris Smith, Jordana Bloom, Robert Pickard, Judit DeStefano, Ryan Knapp,  
Dan Wiedemann, Paul Lundquist, Phil Carroll, Kelley Johnson, Jay Mattegat, Dan Honan. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: First Selectman Dan Rosenthal, Finance Director Bob Tait, Michael J. VanDeventer, 
Partner, MahoneySabol, Samantha Thomas, Audit Manager, 1 press. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Lundquist called the meeting to order with the Pledge of Allegiance at 7:30 pm. 
 
VOTER COMMENT: None. 
 
MINUTES: MR. EIDE MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 7, 2018 
REGULAR MEETING. SECOND BY MR. WIEDEMANN. (Mr. Carroll abstained.) ALL IN 
FAVOR. MOTION PASSES. (11-0) 
 
COMMUNICATIONS: None. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS: None. 
 
FIRST SELECTMAN’S REPORT: Mr. Rosenthal recapped the Selectman’s meeting from last night, 
reviewed Hunters Ridge application for a zone change, overlay zone incentive housing, in order to get 
that, the need for sewer needs to be presented, Water and Sewer Authority has referred that to the Board 
of Selectman and plan to act on at the March 5 meeting. Mr. Ryan asked if that was the same sewer that 
had the recent problem in Sandy Hook, yes, which Mr. Rosenthal provided a bit of background that sewer 
system was built for environmental mitigation purposes and not to support future development. 
The Board of Selectman also voted on a resolution, which will come to the Legislative Council, to support 
an initiative called Sustainable Connecticut. 
The Board of Selectman also accepted three properties of open space, which had been identified by the 
Land Use office and Conservation Commission, all less than $20,000 each.  
Regarding the state budget, Mr. Rosenthal received communication from Rep. Bolinsky that the local 
delegation is working hard to forestall and reverse adverse budget impact, to be prepared for budget 
impact based on new data, Mr. Rosenthal asked Mr. Tait to prepare a revenue analysis. (ATTACHMENT 
A) Mr. Tait reviewed the ECS grant changes, FY 17 Actual, FY 17 and FY 18 Pre-Holdback Budget, and 
FY 18 Post Holdbacks which show a $552,330 savings which offset Motor Vehicle cap loss. With the 
new data of FY 19 compared to Town budget leaves a $121,000 cushion.  Mr. Knapp asked about how 
this affects the roads grant for Newtown and if it will have an impact in the budget, Mr. Tait said this will 
not have an impact on total budget, capital road improvement projects will still move forward. Mr. 
Lundquist asked if there is any sense of timing, Mr. Rosenthal said that the session is just two weeks in, 

3 PRIMROSE STREET 
NEWTOWN, CT 06470 
TEL. (203) 270-4201 
FAX (203) 270-4205 
www.newtown-ct.gov 



LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 
 
 
 
and he will try to get more clarity within the next month or two. Mr. Eide asked for clarification on new 
data and original data, is that data on the fiscal side or data for example on the educational services side. 
The decision was made by the Governor, the formula is basically the same.  
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
2016-2017 FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Mr. Lundquist asked Michael J. VanDeventer, Partner, MahoneySabol, Samantha Thomas, Audit 
Manager to review the 2016-2017 Financial Statement. Mr. VanDeventer, joined by Ms. Thomas, 
distributed the 2017 Audit Results to the Legislative Council. (ATTACHMENT B) Mr. VanDeventer said 
the overall results went very well, very clean from an audit perspective. He reviewed the Scope of Work, 
Auditor’s Reports, Financial Highlights, Required Communications, and took questions from Council 
members. Mr. Lundquist asked about the 10.1% in the unassigned fund balance which is good, but the 1.2 
months could be better, is the 2 month goal new, Mr. VanDeventer replied that it has been out there for a 
while. Rating agencies would look at 10-15%, recently have looked for towns to have a higher fund 
balance percentage. Mr. Eide asked about the Water Fund deficit position, Mr. Tait replied that the Water 
Authority will do some special assessments, $2 million to cover, under the approval process and is 
supposed to start July 1. Mr. Wiedemann asked about the special assessment being charged to the state, 
according to Mr. Tait that is correct. Mr. Knapp inquired about origin of expenditures and other financial 
uses, Mr. Tait said that typically it comes from salary counts, openings, long term disability, works comp, 
fund balance increase due to salary counts.  
MR. WIEDEMANN MOVED TO ACCEPT THE 2016-2017 FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
AUDIT RESULTS FROM MAHONEY SABOL CPA AND ADVISORS. SECOND BY MR. 
HONAN. ALL IN FAVOR. MOTION PASSES. (12-0) 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
APPROVE 2018-2019 CIP ITEMS FOR REFERENDUM IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
NEWTOWN CHARTER 6-35G 
Mr. Lundquist explained the process of approving CIP items, any CIP item that equals or exceeds $1.5 
million shall go to Town referendum, there are 3 items in the CIP that fit this requirement: 1) the Capital 
Road Program for $3.5 million, 2) $1,685,400 Middle Gate roof replacement, and 3) Building/Land 
Purchase/Remediation/Demolition/infrastructure for $4 million.  
MR. WIEDEMANN MOVED TO APPROVE 2018-2019 CIP ITEM – CAPITAL ROAD 
PROGRAM FOR REFERENDUM IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE NEWTOWN CHARTER 6-
35G. SECOND BY MR. EIDE. No discussion.  ALL IN FAVOR. MOTION PASSES. (12-0) 
 
MR. WIEDEMANN MOVED TO APPROVE 2018-2019 CIP ITEM – MIDDLE GATE 
SCHOOL ROOF REPLACEMENT FOR REFERENDUM IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
NEWTOWN CHARTER 6-35G. SECOND BY MR. EIDE.  No discussion. ALL IN FAVOR. 
MOTION PASSES. (12-0) 
 
MR WIEDEMANN MOVED TO APPROVE 2018-2019 CIP ITEM – BUILDING/LAND 
PURCHASE/REMEDIATION/DEMOLITION/INFRASTRUCTURE FOR REFERENDUM IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE NEWTOWN CHARTER 6-35G. SECOND BY MR. HONAN.        
Mr. Rosenthal said that this line item was associated with the police department, as mentioned in the last 



LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL 
 
 
 
meeting, the design firm was hired by the Board of Selectmen two weeks ago and have undergone 
updating the space needs study, which should be completed soon, then move quickly to analyze three 
different sites, with the objective to deliver a new station that delivers what the department needs at the 
lowest possible cost.  Mr. Rosenthal respectfully asked that without complete information at this time it 
would be best to hold off until there is a better project plan developed before sending to the voters for 
consent at referendum. Mr. Lundquist asked of any sense of timing, perhaps at the next meeting, Mr. 
Rosenthal said that it will probably take longer than that. He does not want to jeopardize the project by 
vague information or speculation. He wished there was more information at this time, but there is not 
enough explanatory text. Mr. Knapp said that if it were to be sent to the April referendum do we have to 
approve the text that goes with the referendum. Mr. Rosenthal said we do not yet have clarity on the 
number. Mr. Knapp added that a referendum costs $8-10,000. Mr. Rosenthal said that his objective is not 
to have a special referendum. Given the size of the project if special referendum, he would support it, but 
the objective is to get as much information to the voters and he does not have that yet. If he gets that, he 
will present it, he has discussed with the chiefs of police. Mr. Lundquist said that trying to be flexible and 
allowing future transparency, but the description as is now, is not descriptive of relating of a police 
station, and that is really not fair to the voters. He said that the Council could take no action. Mr. Smith 
said that there if there is lack of clarity, would that jeopardize the project, Mr. Rosenthal had those 
concerns and it could be rejected without more information. Mr. Pickard asked if it is possible to change 
the language and clarify that it is for a police department. Mr. Lundquist said it could be done, but since 
there is no clarity at this moment, it is not rational to put forth with lack of information.  Mr. Knapp 
agreed with Mr. Rosenthal, his concern about doing a special referendum after more information and 
having lower voter turnout for special referendum. Mr. Rosenthal is aware of that, and will need to talk to 
everyone collectively once we have a project. Mr. Carroll asked if it would be better to put off to next 
year. Mr. Rosenthal said it could be possible, but he hopes to not delay the project a whole year. Based on 
the Mr. Rosenthal’s comments, Mr. Mattegat suggested to table the motion for further discussion. Mr. 
Lundquist advised to consider that and explained the process in order to withdraw the motion.  
Mr. Eide asked when items, voted on in referendum, impact debt service. Mr. Tait said that the impact 
would be in 2019-20. 6 months for interest, 1 year for principal. Always bond in February/March. 
MR. WIEDEMANN WITHDREW HIS MOTION. MR. HONAN WITHDREW HIS 
SECOND. ALL IN FAVOR TO WITHDRAW THE MOTION TO APPROVE 2018-2019 CIP 
ITEM - BUILDING/ LAND PURCHASE/REMEDIATION/DEMOLITION/ 
INFRASTRUCTURE FOR REFERENDUM IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE NEWTOWN 
CHARTER 6-35G. ALL IN FAVOR. MOTION TO WITHDRAW PASSES. (12-0) 
 
VOTER COMMENT: None. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Mr. Honan said the education committee meeting will be at 7:00 pm on March 7.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 8:26 pm. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
June Sgobbo, Clerk 
Attachments: Budget analysis, MahoneySabol 2017 Audit Results. 
These are draft minutes and as such are subject to correction by the Legislative Council at the next 
regular meeting.  All corrections will be determined in minutes of the meeting at which they were 
corrected.  






























	LC MEETING 2.20.2018 MINUTES
	Attachment A
	MahoneySabol

